
Anyone requesting auxiliary aids or services is asked to contact
the Administration Department five business days prior to the meeting.

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA
Regular Meeting

Wednesday, February 28, 2018
6:00 PM

Safety Center 15 Legends Drive Hooksett NH 03106

1.    CALL TO ORDER

2.    PROOF OF POSTING

3.    ROLL CALL

4.    PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

5.    SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS

5.a    Hooksett Municipal Employees – New Hires

6.    SCHEDULED APPOINTMENTS

6.a    Town Clerk, Todd Rainier and Moderator - March 13, 2018 Town Elections

6.b    Town of Hooksett Fire-Rescue Dept. Administration - Emergency Operations Center Tour
and CPR/AED/First Aid Town Council Training

6.c    Town of Hooksett Police Dept. Administration - Proposed Renovations Tour

7.    APPROVAL OF MINUTES

7.a    Public:  02/14/18
TC Minutes 021418-U.docx

7.b    Non-Public:  02/14/18

8.    AGENDA OVERVIEW

9.    PUBLIC HEARINGS

9.a    Public Hearing for the Town Council to notify and explain to the public that the following
warrant article has been placed on the March 13, 2018 ballot for the town elections: Article 22 “To
see if the town will vote to allow the operation of KENO within the town pursuant to the provisions
of NH RSA 284:41 through 51”.   

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/154019/TC_Minutes_021418-U.pdf


Anyone requesting auxiliary aids or services is asked to contact
the Administration Department five business days prior to the meeting.

022818 KENO Public Hearing.doc

KENO 2018.pdf

10.    CONSENT AGENDA

10.a    Accept the donation of a $250.00 donation from the Vietnam Veterans of America, Inc. to
the Town of Hooksett, NH for the Hooksett Fire Rescue Department under RSA 31:95-b III (b).

Staff Report - VVA_donation.docx

10.b    Motion to accept the reimbursement of $972.98 from the State of New Hampshire
Department of Safety, Homeland Security and Emergency Management Training & Exercise, to
the Town of Hooksett for the Hooksett Police Department per RSA 31:95-b: III(b) and to return the
funds to the Police Department’s 2017-2018 fiscal budget under the training and dues line
400-4210-294-000.

Staff Report - Reimbursement.docx

20180215134656402.pdf

10.c    Assessing - Abatement(s) & Deferral(s)
Abatements 02282018.docx

11.    TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT

12.    PUBLIC INPUT - 15 MINUTES

13.    NOMINATIONS AND APPOINTMENTS

14.    15 MINUTE RECESS

15.    OLD BUSINESS

16.    NEW BUSINESS

16.a    RFP for Telephone Services
SR Telephone Services 2018.docx

OTT Communications.pdf

16.b    Well Radius Encroachment Easement Request by Lamontagne Builders, Inc. (LBI) on
Town Right of Way – 48 Pine Street
staff report - 2-28-18 Well Radius Encroachment easement on Town right-of-way Pine Street - for lot 48

Pine Street.docx
2

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/148182/022818_KENO_Public_Hearing.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/148184/KENO_2018.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/144799/Staff_Report_-_VVA_donation.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/152356/Staff_Report_-_Reimbursement.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/152357/20180215134656402.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/153057/Abatements_02282018.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/152261/SR_Telephone_Services_2018.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/152262/OTT_Communications.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/150077/staff_report_-_2-28-18_Well_Radius_Encroachment_easement_on_Town_right-of-way_Pine_Street_-_for_lot_48_Pine_Street.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/150077/staff_report_-_2-28-18_Well_Radius_Encroachment_easement_on_Town_right-of-way_Pine_Street_-_for_lot_48_Pine_Street.pdf


Anyone requesting auxiliary aids or services is asked to contact
the Administration Department five business days prior to the meeting.

48PineStreet.Well.020218.pdf

ISDS_eCA2017060501_Approved_Plan.pdf

16.c    Accept College Park Drive Sidewalk Project as complete
staff report - feb 28 2018 Accept College Park Drive Sidewalk project as Complete.docx

16.d    Hooksett Village Water Precinct easement across Town of Hooksett land - Tax Map 7 Lot
18

staff report - feb 28 2018 HVWP easement across town land.docx

4100-02 Overall Proposed Pipeline 50-scale.pdf

4100-02 Overall Proposed Pipeline 100-scale.pdf

Letter to JDonison.pdf

Town of Hooksett Easement .pdf

16.e    Town Personnel Plan - Professional Development Policy for Town Employees

16.f    Community Profile - 1) Pavillion and 2) Blight Properties
Community Profile.pdf

17.    SUB-COMMITTEE REPORTS

18.    PUBLIC INPUT

19.    NON-PUBLIC SESSION

19.a    NH RSA 91-A:3 II (a) The dismissal, promotion, or compensation of any public employee or
the disciplining of such employee, or the investigation of any charges against him or her.

19.b    NH RSA 91-A:3 II (b) The hiring of any person as a public employee.

19.c    NH RSA 91-A:3 II (c) Matters which, if discussed in public, would likely affect adversely the
reputation of any person, other than a member of the public body itself.

20.    ADJOURNMENT

Public Input

3

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/150078/48PineStreet.Well.020218.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/150079/ISDS_eCA2017060501_Approved_Plan.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/152456/staff_report_-_feb_28_2018_Accept_College_Park_Drive_Sidewalk_project_as_Complete.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/152458/staff_report_-_feb_28_2018_HVWP_easement_across_town_land.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/152459/4100-02_Overall_Proposed_Pipeline_50-scale.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/152460/4100-02_Overall_Proposed_Pipeline_100-scale.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/152461/Letter_to_JDonison.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/152462/Town_of_Hooksett_Easement_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/152859/Community_Profile.pdf


Anyone requesting auxiliary aids or services is asked to contact
the Administration Department five business days prior to the meeting.

1. Two 15-minute Public Input sessions will be allowed during each Council Meeting. Time
will be divided equally among those wishing to speak, however,no person will be allowed
to speak for more than 5 minutes. 

2. No person may address the council more than twice on any issue in any
meeting.Comments must be addressed to the Chair and must not be personal or
derogatory about any other person.

3. Any questions must be directly related to the topic being discussed and must be
addressed to the Chair only, who after consultation with Council and Town Administrator,
will determine if the question can be answered at that time. Questions cannot be directed
to an individual Councilor and must not be personal in nature. Issues raised during Public
Input, which cannot be resolved or answered at that time, or which require additional
discussion or research, will be noted by the Town Administrator who will be responsible
for researching and responding to the comment directly during normal work hours or by
bringing to the Council for discussion at a subsequent meeting. The Chair reserves the
right to end questioning if the questions depart from clarification to deliberation.

4. Council members may request a comment be added to New Business at a subsequent
meeting. 

5. No one may speak during Public Input except the person acknowledged by the Chair.
Direct questions or comments from the audience are not permitted during Public Input.

4



TC Meeting Minutes 021418-U 1

TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES - UNOFFICIAL1
Regular Meeting2

Wednesday, February 14, 20183
6:00 PM4

Council Chambers5
6
7

1.    CALL TO ORDER 8
9

Chairman James Sullivan called the meeting to order at 6:11 p.m.10
11

2.    PROOF OF POSTING12
13

Town Administrator, Dr. Dean Shankle provided the proof of posting.14
15

3.    ROLL CALL16
17

In attendance:  Councilor Donald Winterton, Councilor Timothy Tsantoulis, Councilor James 18
Levesque, Councilor Alex Walczyk, Councilor Robert Duhaime, Councilor David Ross, 19
Chairman James Sullivan.20

21
Absent:  Councilor John Giotas, Councilor Marc Miville22

23
4.    PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE24

25
5.    SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS26

27
5.a    Hooksett Municipal Employees – New Hires28

29
Dr. Shankle introduced the new Planner, Nicholas Williams who came forward.  Mr. Willilams said he 30
was from Des Moines, Iowa and was happy to be a New Englander, having been in NH for ten days 31
now.  The Council welcomed him to the Hooksett family.  32

33
6.   SCHEDULED APPOINTMENTS34

35
6.a    Town of Hooksett Financial Auditor, Matthew Angell36

37
Hooksett Financial Auditor, Matthew Angell came forward and went over a PowerPoint presentation 38
[attached] on Hooksett’s financial audit for the year ending June 30, 2017.  Mr. Angell went over the 39
audit objectives and how the audit went.  He said the management letter provides suggestions on how 40
to improve internal controls.  41

42
6.b    Town of Hooksett Finance Director, Christine Soucie - Quarterly Financial Report43
Quarterly Financial Report 12-31-17.pdf44

45
Christine Soucie, Finance Director,, went over the unaudited quarterly financial report for 46
December 31, 2017.  The report showed a three year history of the major expenditures and 47
revenues.  Director Soucie said the increase in the total operating budget of $20,277,810 was 48
due to the pedestrian bridge.  She said revenues have been level with a slight uptick due to 49
the sale of the property on Auburn Road and closing a Capital Reserve account.  Director 50
Soucie said the town finances are in good shape at the half way point in the year.  All 51
departments are running where they need to be except for tax collection that is lower than 52

5



TC Meeting Minutes 021418-U 2

where they should be.  She said she anticipates overspending in Fire-Rescue but there will 53
be health insurance savings.  She said the Police Department is pretty close to where they 54
have been. Director Soucie indicated that DPW’s recycling center is fully staffed and that 55
revenue from building permits is slightly lower than last year but she expects they’ll get to 56
$100,000.  When asked by Councilor Tsantoulis the cause for the increase in the ambulance 57
service fund, Director Soucie said “mandatory health insurance”.58

59
7.    APPROVAL OF MINUTES60

61
7.a    Public:  01/24/1862
TC Minutes  012418-U.docx63

64
Councilor Tsantoulis moved, second by Councilor Winterton, to approve the Town Council 65
meeting minutes of January 24, 2018, as amended.  Motion passed unanimously, 7-0.66

67
7.b    Public:  02/03/1868
TC public minutes 1205pm 020318-U.doc69

70
Councilor Winterton moved, second by Councilor Walczyk, to approve the Town Council 71
meeting minutes of February 3, 2018, as presented.  Motion passed unanimously, 7-0.72

73
8.    AGENDA OVERVIEW74

75
9.    PUBLIC HEARINGS76

77
10.    CONSENT AGENDA78

79
10.a    Motion to accept the donation of $3,400.00 for unanticipated funds as part of a negotiated 80
plea agreement through Merrimack Superior Court Case (#16-CR-065 [1182797]), to the Town of 81
Hooksett for the Hooksett Police Department per RSA 31:91-b: III(b) and to return the funds to 82
the Police Department’s 2017-2018, miscellaneous donation line.83
Staff Report - Plea Agreement Donation 1.docx84

85
10.b    Accept the donation of 23 file cabinets valued at $200 each from CIGNA to the Town of 86
Hooksett for use by departments and committees per RSA 31:95-e II87
CIGNA Donation Staff Report.docx88

89
10.c    Accept the donation of 30 chairs, training tables, and a large conference table  valued at 90
$2,000.00  from Jeff Marion, owner of THINK Office Furniture Recyclers, LLC, to the Town of 91
Hooksett for the Emergency Operations Center at the Hooksett Safety Center per RSA 31:95-e II92
staff_report__furniture_donation_EOC.docx93

94
Councilor Winterton asked that item 10c be removed from the Consent Agenda.  Chairman 95
Sullivan moved, second by Councilor Winterton to approve items 10a and 10b.  Motion 96
passed unanimously, 7-0.97

98
Councilor Winterton moved, second by Councilor Ross, to approve item 10c of the Consent 99
Agenda.  Motion passed unanimously, 7-0. Councilor Winterton asked where THINK Office 100
Furniture is located and was informed in Candia.  He said it is nice to know so that “we can 101
do business with those who are nice to us”.102

103
104 6



TC Meeting Minutes 021418-U 3

Chairman Sullivan adjusted the agenda to take up item 15.a Hackett Hill Road/Route 3A 105
Roundabout.106

107
As requested by the Council, Nick Golan from TF Moran appeared to discuss the number of 108
Change Orders on the project; specifically, Change Order #4.  Jim Donison, Town Engineer, 109
joined him.110

111
Mr. Golan provided a description of each engineering design phase of the change orders 112
[attached] starting in 2012.  TF Moran now proposes an increase in their contract amount by 113
$14,623 which will result in a total contract amount of $189,187.  The town’s responsibility is 114
30 percent of the project costs with 70 percent being NHDOT eligible for reimbursement.  Mr. 115
Golan said the additional engineering pertains to retaining a contractor to perform test pits 116
along the shoulder of Route 3A to determine soil conditions to finalize the design of the 117
roadway and for the large overhead sign posts that will be required by NHDOT.  Without this 118
soil information, NHDOT will require the complete reconstruction of the roadway rather than 119
just a pavement overlay which will result in additional construction costs to the project.  Also, 120
it includes engineering services for the preparation of driveway design plans for the Keyland 121
Properties (KP) driveway relocation off of Hackett Hill Road.  This design is required in order 122
for the state to complete their appraisal of the required land taking from KP as part of the 123
roundabout project in order to start the negotiation process.124

125
Dr. Shankle asked when the project could go out to bid.  Mr. Donison said the project could 126
go out to bid in March or April then presented to the Council to recommend award of the 127
contract which has to go to NHDOT.  Mr. Donison stated that NHDOT has said that this 128
particular project is sunsetting which means if the town doesn’t go forward they will lose their 129
2/3 share.130

131
Councilor Ross said there was no public outcry “wanting this thing”.  Dr. Shankle suggested 132
moving forward to get a bid and see what comes in before making a decision.  After a bit 133
more discussion, Councilor Ross moved, second by Councilor Winterton, to approve Change 134
Order #4 for the amount of $14,623 resulting in a total engineering contract amount of 135
$189,187 with TF Moran with 70 percent of these costs being eligible for NHDOT 136
reimbursement funding.  Roll Call #2: Councilor Ross-yes, Councilor Levesque-yes, 137
Councilor Walczyk-yes, Councilor Winterton-yes, Councilor Tsantoulis-yes, Chairman 138
Sullivan-yes.  Motion passed unanimously, 6-0. [Note: Councilor Duhaime had stepped out 139
of the meeting room at the time of the vote.]  It was also noted that the 30 percent town 140
portion of this Change Order #4 ($4,389.90) will be paid from the Zone 1 impact fees.  The 141
town has presently obligated $405,088 from Zone 1 impact fees for this project.  The Council 142
will review a timeline at its next meeting.143

144
11.    TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT145

146
Dr. Shankle’s report included the following information:147

148
 Recycling is fully staff; short a driver in Highway.  The District Court part-time custodian 149

has left his position; found a Fun in the Sun Director and are now doing a background 150
check.  FF is leaving next month.151

  In follow-up to Councilor Ross’ request for information on taxation of manufactured 152
homes, a PowerPoint presentation was located prepared by the NH Housing 153
Assessors Association.  He’ll forward a copy to Councilor Ross.154

7



TC Meeting Minutes 021418-U 4

   There were some weather related issues at the Courthouse.  He said they will know 155
more after March 13th.156

   Dr. Littlefield will come by tomorrow; the Merrimack Chamber will host a Business After 157
Hours and all can attend since “we are dues paying members”.158

  The first week of closing early on Fridays went well.  Data was provided on a number of 159
activities.160

  On the request for a light on Berry Hill, Jim Donison, Town Engineer looked into it.  It is 161
a state road but the town pays.  The town will install the light.  They are in the process 162
of changing to LED.163

  He requested information on progress with the Firebird Motel.  Chief Bouchard came 164
forward.  She stated that there has been a significant decrease in illegal activities and 165
transients are fewer.  She said the owners are cooperative and are making efforts.  166
There is more lighting and security now requires photo identification.  Councilor 167
Winterton said he/the Council were happy with the news noting movement in the right 168
direction.169

170
Councilor Duhaime returned to the meeting at 7:41 p.m.171

172
Councilor Winterton said he received a message from a Hooksett resident whose mailbox 173
had been knocked down.  The resident said he got a new mailbox by noon.  The Councilor 174
thanked DPW Director, Diane Boyce, for the great service.175

176
Dr. Shankle and Nick Germain look at all social media that mentions Hooksett.  In January 177
there were 6,019 interactions -- 43 percent positive, 48 neutral, and only nine negative.  The 178
most active group are people in the dog park. There is a big problem with kennel cough and 179
negatives were on that.  180

181
Councilor Winterton moved, second by Councilor Tsantoulis, that the Council Chair send a 182
letter to the Sewer Commission stating that upon receipt of their final payment on the Lilac 183
Bridge that any further charges will not be borne by the Sewer Commission.  Motion passed 184
unanimously, 7-0.185

186
Councilor Ross suggested putting social media information on the website.  During the storm, 187
Councilor Duhaime said the town roads were in better shape than the state roads.188

189
12.    PUBLIC INPUT - 15 MINUTES190

191
13.    NOMINATIONS AND APPOINTMENTS192

193
14.    15 MINUTE RECESS194

195
15.    OLD BUSINESS196

197
15.a    Hackett Hill Rd / Rte. 3A Roundabout – Engineering Change Order #4 (1/10/18 Town 198
Council Tabled) – TAKEN UP EARLIER199
staff report - feb 14 2018 Hackett Hill Rd - rte 3A Roundabout Change Order No 4 with TFMoran.docx200

201
15.b    Deliberative Session 02/03/18202

203
8



TC Meeting Minutes 021418-U 5

Chairman Sullivan said there was good discussion at the Deliberative Session but just too 204
few people in attendance.  Councilor Tsantoulis said what needed to be accomplished was 205
accomplished.206

207
Dr. Shankle reminded everyone of the open Council seat in District 4 that no one applied for.208

209
16.    NEW BUSINESS210

211
16.a    Accept $60,000 in grant funds for the Conservation Easement Deed on the Town Land 212
previous known as the Heroux Property “Clay Pond III” from NHDES Source Water Protection 213
and LCHIP (1/10/18 Town Council Public Hearing)214
staff report - feb 14 2018 Accept Grant Funds $60000 Heroux Propoerty Conservation easement.docx215

216
Councilor Ross moved, second by Councilor Tsantoulis, to accept the $50,000 NH 217
Department of Environmental Services (NHDES) Source Water Protection grant and the 218
$10,000 Land and Community Investment Heritage Program (LCHIP) grant and to place the 219
$60,000 into the town’s Conservation Commission fund account.  Roll Call #3: Councilor 220
Ross-yes, Councilor Walczyk-yes, Councilor Duhaime-yes, CouncilorTsantoulis-yes, 221
Councilor Levesque-yes, Councilor Winterton-yes, Chairman Sullivan-yes.  Motion passed 222
unanimously, 7-0.223

224
17.    SUB-COMMITTEE REPORTS225

226
Councilor Levesque said the Zoning Board met on one item – the tower on Mast Road.  A 227
site walk will be posted.228

229
Councilor Ross said the Conservation Commission met on Monday but he missed the 230
meeting.  He said they discussed mitigation fee for SNHU regarding encroachment on 231
parking area and a letter from NHDES denying a permit to ED Swett which is now in the 232
hands of the Attorney General.233

234
Councilor Winterton said the Planning Board did not meet; Sewer met.235

236
Chairman Sullivan said the Old Town Hall Committee met and had a very good meeting.  237
They are looking for a grant to do woodworking near the loft and wanes coating.  He said the 238
windows were in and you “can’t tell where the old door was”.239

240
Councilor Duhaime said the Parks and Recreation Advisory Committee meet and are moving 241
forward.  242

243
Councilor Tsantoulis said a mother wants to nominate her son as Youth Achiever.244

245
Donna Fitzpatrick said the Council meeting of February 28th will be held at the Safety Center 246
and preceded by CPR/AED training.  She suggested wearing comfortable clothing.  She said 247
there will be a public hearing on Keno that night as well.248

249
18.    PUBLIC INPUT250

251
19.    NON-PUBLIC SESSION252

253 9



TC Meeting Minutes 021418-U 6

19.a    NH RSA 91-A:3 II (a) The dismissal, promotion, or compensation of any public employee 254
or the disciplining of such employee, or the investigation of any charges against him or her.255

256
19.b    NH RSA 91-A:3 II (b) The hiring of any person as a public employee.257

258
19.c    NH RSA 91-A:3 II (c) Matters which, if discussed in public, would likely affect adversely the 259
reputation of any person, other than a member of the public body itself.260

261
J. Sullivan motioned to enter non-public session of 02/14/18 at 8:10pm. Seconded by 262
J. Levesque.263

264
Roll Call265
A. Walczyk – yes266
J. Levesque – yes267
D. Ross – yes268
R. Duhaime – yes269
D. Winterton – yes270
T. Tsantoulis – yes271
J. Sullivan - yes272
Vote 7 in favor.273

274
D. Winterton motioned to exit non-public session of 02/14/18 at 9:00pm. Seconded by 275
A. Walczyk.  Vote unanimously in favor.276

D. Winterson motioned to seal the non-public minutes of 02/14/18. Seconded by J. 277
Levesque. Vote unanimously in favor.278

279
280

PUBLIC SESSION CONTINUED AT 9:00pm281
D. Winterton motioned that the Council, as recommended by the Town Administrator 282
and per Town Charter Section 4.6, advises and consents to Randy Evans for a 283
conditional offer of employment as the new Family Services Director. Seconded by J. 284
Levesque.  Vote unanimously in favor.285

286
287

20.    ADJOURNMENT288
289

J. Sullivan motioned to adjourn the public session of 02/14/18 at 9:05pm. Seconded by 290
D. Winterton.  Vote unanimously in favor.291

292
293

Note:  The town website may have attachments to these Town Council minutes for 294
documents referred to in the minutes, reading file materials, and/or ancillary documents that 295
the Town Council has signed as agent to expend as a result of the Council’s prior approval of 296
the documents.297

298
Respectfully submitted,299

300
301

Suzanne Beauchesne302
Recording Clerk303 10



TOWN OF HOOKSETT
PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE

The Hooksett Town Council will be holding a public hearing on Wednesday, 
February 28, 2018 @ 6:00pm at the Hooksett Safety Center, 15 Legends Drive, Hooksett, 
NH. The purpose of the hearing is to notify and explain to the public that the following
warrant article has been placed on the March 13, 2018 ballot for the town elections: 
Article 22 “To see if the town will vote to allow the operation of KENO within the town 
pursuant to the provisions of NH RSA 284:41 through 51”.  KENO documents are 
available for viewing in the Administration Department and questions should be directed 
to this department at 603-485-8472.

11



12



13



14



15



Staff Report

Title:  Fire Dept donation from the Vietnam Veterans of America, Inc
Date:   2/28/2018

Background and Discussion of Issues
On October 4th to 8th, the Hooksett Fire Rescue Department provided assistance to the NH Chapter 41of the Vietnam Veterans of 
America, Inc with the Vietnam Veterans Memorial Traveling Wall at Southern NH University. They provided this donation 
along with a certificate of appreciation to the Fire Rescue Department.

Recommendation (including suggested motion, if appropriate)
Accept the donation of a $250.00 donation from the Vietnam Veterans of America, Inc. to the Town of 
Hooksett, NH for the Hooksett Fire Rescue Department under RSA 31:95-b III (b).

Fiscal Impact
None

Report prepared by:   Captain Joseph P Stalker

Town Administrator’s Recommendation 
Concur

16



Staff Report
Title: Reimbursement

Date: 02/28/2018
Background Discussion of Issues
On November 9, 2017 The Hooksett Police Department paid the Central New Hampshire Special 
Operations Unit $972.98 with the understanding we would be reimbursed the $972.98 from the State of 
New Hampshire Department of Safety, Homeland Security and Emergency Management Training & 
Exercise, for two of our officers who are members to the Central New Hampshire Special Operations 
unit that attend the New York Tactical Officer Association Conference in April, 2017.

Recommendation (Including Suggested motion, if appropriate)
Motion to accept the reimbursement of $972.98 from the State of New Hampshire Department of 
Safety, Homeland Security and Emergency Management Training & Exercise, to the Town of 
Hooksett for the Hooksett Police Department per RSA 31:95-b: III(b) and to return the funds to the 
Police Department’s 2017-2018 fiscal budget under the training and dues line 400-4210-294-000.

Fiscal Impact
None

Prepared By: Captain Jake Robie
Town Administrator’s Recommendation
Concur

17



18



19



20



Staff Report
Title Assessing Abatements

Date: 2/28/2018
Background Discussion of Issues
On January 24, 2018 the Board of Assessors met to review the 2017 Abatement requests and 
made the following recommendations:

Case 17-002 Burgess Mobile Homes Map 39-1-56 Hooksett Road.
In 2017, Mr. Burgess requested a tax abatement on the past due taxes of $6600 for this mobile 
home which he acquire through a "rite of possession" on 1/23/17. The Town granted an abated 
in the amount of $3600 on 4/5/17. Mr. Burgess paid the balance of $3000 on 5/16/17 and 
obtained a demo permit to remove the existing structure. Since the structure remained on the 
property as of April 1, 2017, a tax bill was issued in the amount of $751 for 2017. Mr. Burgess 
paid the taxes in full on 11/30/2017.
The BOA met with Mr. Burgess and reviewed the request and recommends abating the 2017 
taxes in the amount of $751.

Case 17-003 (Deferral)
BOA reviewed the application and recommends approval of the deferral in the amount of $4621

Recommendation (Including Suggested motion, if appropriate)
Consent Agenda
Motion to approve the recommendation of the BOA for Case 17-002.
Motion to approve the recommendation of the BOA for Case 17-003

Fiscal Impact
Abatements in the amount of $751.
Deferral of $4621.

Prepared By: Lee Ann Moynihan
Town Administrator’s Recommendation
Concur

21



Staff Report
RFP for Telephone Services

2/28/2018
Background Discussion of Issues
This was the second time the Town bid out the Telephone Services within twelve months.  

The first time the Town received only one qualified bid from FirstLight.  This time the Town 
received one bid, from our current provider OTT Communications.  

Current OTT Proposal 

Type of Line Pricing 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year

Copper lines
     

1,292.58 
        

1,476.00 
      

1,312.00 
       

1,148.00 

T1 w/internet
        

192.00 
           

245.00 
          

232.00 
           

219.00 

Hosted**
        

683.57 
           

733.00 
          

694.00 
           

655.00 

Monthly cost w/out 
Taxes

     
2,168.15 

        
2,454.00 

      
2,238.00 

       
2,022.00 

**pricing includes 3000 minutes of long distance

Recommendation (Including Suggested motion, if appropriate)

Motion to accept OTT Communication’s three year bid for Telephone Services and have the 
Town Administrator enter into a contract with them.  

Fiscal Impact
Estimated annual savings of $1,754  

Prepared By: Christine Soucie, Finance Director
Town Administrator’s Recommendation
Concur

22



23



24



25



Staff Report
Title: Well Radius Encroachment Easement Request by Lamontagne Builders, Inc. (LBI) on Town 

Right of Way – 48 Pine Street
Date: 2/28/2018

Background Discussion of Issues
A request has been made for a Well Radius Encroachment Easement by Lamontagne Builders, 
Inc. (LBI) onto the Pine Street Right of Way as part of the construction of a residential house 
located at 48 Pine Street, Map/Lot 5/86.  The existing lot is narrow and the 75 ft. well radius 
will extend onto the roadway right-of-way.  See attached approved subsurface design plan, and 
letter from KVA on behalf of LBI.

Recommendation 
Recommend that Town council approve a water well radius encroachment easement on the 
Pine Street right-of-way, with easement language to be approved by Town Attorney, for a 
proposed well to be located on Map/Lot 5/86  - 48 Pine Street.  Well to be constructed by 
Lamontagne Builders, Inc. (LBI) as part of a new residential house.

Fiscal Impact
None.

Prepared By: James J. Donison, P.E., Assistant Director of Public Works/Town Engineer
Town Administrator’s Recommendation
Concur

26



 

10 Commerce Park North, Suite 3B Bedford, NH 03110 Phone (603) 627-2881 Fax (603) 627-2915 

Civil Engineering Land Surveying Landscape Architecture 

KEACH-NORDSTROM ASSOCIATES, INC. 

 

 

February 02, 2018 

 

 

Mr. James J. Donison, P.E. 

Hooksett Community Development Department 

35 Main Street 

Hooksett, New Hampshire 03106 

 

 

Subject: 48 Pine Street (Map 5 – Lot 86); Hooksett, New Hampshire 

  KNA Project No. 18-0109-1 

 

 

Dear Mr. Donison: 

 

 

I am writing at this time in order to follow up on our recent telephone conversation regarding the 

subject property.  As you may recall on November 08, 2017 your office forwarded email 

correspondence to Lamontagne Builders, Inc. (LBI) advising that a private water well they had 

caused to be installed on the subject premises did not comply, in terms of its location, with the 

requirements of Section 11.13 (3) of Town of Hooksett Development Regulations.  Subsequent 

to receipt of this correspondence, LBI contacted this office for assistance in properly resolving 

the noted deficiency.  Since we did not have benefit of prior involvement with the subject parcel, 

nor participated in advancement of LBI’s plans to construct a single-family home on the same, in 

order to properly advise LBI we performed research which revealed the following series of facts: 

 

 The 0.79+ acre parcel, now identified as 48 Pine Street, came to exist in its current 

dimension and configuration several decades ago as a result of takings by the State of 

New Hampshire for the construction of I-93 and associated realignment of Pine Street.  

 

 Bedford Three Corners Corporation (an LBI entity) acquired the subject parcel on June 

22, 2017 with the intent of constructing a single family residential dwelling on the same.  

Prior to taking title and submitting an application for a residential building permit, LBI 

contracted with a local Septic System Designer who updated a design plan he had 

previously prepared for the former lot owner.  The NHDES Subsurface Systems Bureau 

issued Construction Approval on June 05, 2017.   

 

 Given the genesis of the parcel it enjoys status as a nonconforming “Lot of Record” as 

defined under Article 26.B (1) of the Hooksett Zoning Ordinance.  Article 26.B (2) of 

the Ordinance goes on to establish criteria, which if satisfied, enables a Lot of Record to 

“be used for the purposes provided in the district in which the property is located.” We 

presume the Code Enforcement Officer relied on these provisions when issuing LBI a 

building permit for residential construction in 2017.  

 

27



Mr. James J. Donison, P.E. 

February 02, 2018 

 

2 | P a g e  
 

Section 11.13 (3) of the Hooksett Development Regulations requires a 75 foot protective well 

radius for private wells.  Consistent with requirements of NHDES Rules, Section 11.13 (3) 

precludes the installation of leach-fields on land situated within a required well radius. The 

approved septic system design plan satisfies each of these requirements.  Section 11.13 (3) goes 

on to also stipulate that “the entire well radius must be contained within the property lines, 

including the lot’s frontage (right-of-way).”  Current State requirements [see RSA 485-A: 30-b, 

I(b) and (c)] parrot this requirement but only for lots created after August 20, 1989.  For the 

purposes of administering RSA 485-A: 30-b, I(c), the NHDES considers the right-of-way of 

public highways to be “permanently dedicated to a use which precludes development”.  On that 

basis the NHDES was able to lawfully approve the septic system design plan prepared by LBI’s 

consultant despite limited portions the protective well radius being situated within public right-

of-way beyond the boundaries of the subject tract.   

 

For the reasons noted in the two preceding paragraphs, it is my opinion that neither the NHDES 

Subsurface Systems Bureau nor Hooksett’s Code Enforcement Officer erred when issuing the 

construction and buildings permits LBI has received to date.   

 

Within your correspondence of November 8th you suggest pursuit of easements with the Town 

and the NHDOT as a remedy for LBI’s inability to site a well on the subject parcel at a location 

which would enable the entire well radius to be contained within the property lines.  While I 

agree the easement option would be appropriate if the well radius encroached on privately owned 

property, I do not believe this is the preferred remedy in the current instance.  I say this for two 

reasons; one is that the only activity precluded from land situated within the protective radius is 

the construction of a septic system.  From a practical standpoint I find it extremely unlikely that 

either the Town of Hooksett or NHDOT would have any reason to construct a leach-field within 

the right-of-way of the two adjoining public highways.  The second reason is that I would be 

hesitant to suggest it would be good public policy for any governmental entity to convey rights to 

a private entity over public lands, including the right-of-way of public streets and highways.  

Rather than the use of easements in the current instance, I recommend LBI rely on applicable 

provisions of RSA 485-A: 30-b, I(g).  Under this solution, LBI would execute and record a 

NHDES Standard Release Form which both acknowledges the protective well radius at 48 Pine 

Street extends beyond the boundaries of the parcel and holds the owners of the abutting property 

harmless in the event the well becomes contaminated as a result of the decreased setback 

distance.  Attached, please find a draft copy of the NHDES Standard Release Form I have 

prepared for your consideration and review.  If acceptable, I will advise Mr. Lamontagne to sign 

and record the original at the Merrimack County Registry of Deeds.  This recommended remedy 

is both consistent and fully compliant with applicable statute. 

 

 

Sincerely: 

 

 

Steven B. Keach, P.E. 

President 

Keach-Nordstrom Associates, Inc. 

 

28



WL

Enviro-Septic® wastewater treatment systems are approved by NHDES as an ITA

(approval# 2008-03-01) in accordance with Part Env-Wq 1024.  The system is designed in

accordance with the Enviro-Septic® & Simple Septic Leaching Systems Design and

Installation Manual and the Enviro-Septic® Wastewater Treatment Systems Design and

Installation Manual New Hampshire State Attachment. No substitutions will be allowed.

Wetlands (if applicable) were delineated on the basis of hydrophytic vegetation, hydric soils,

and wetlands hydrology in accordance with the techniques outlined in the "Corps of

Engineers Wetlands Delineation Manual, Technical Report y-87-1", January 1987.  The

hydric soil component was determined by using the "Field Indicators for Identifying Hydric

Soils in New England, Version 3", April 2004.

Effective August 2007, New Hampshire adopted the 2006 international plumbing code

which requires any septic pipe installed through the foundation or under any footing to be

sleeved.  The sleeve shall be 2 pipe sizes larger than pipe passing through, with a watertight,

flexible connection between the pipe and the sleeve.  (A cored drilled hole can act as the

sleeve if adequately sized.)

REVIEWED AND APPROVED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE

REQUIREMENTS OF THE
NH DEPT OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

WATER DIVISION

Date: 6/5/2017

#eCA2017060501 29



Staff Report
Title: Accept College Park Drive Sidewalk Project as complete

Date: 2/28/2018
Background Discussion of Issues
The construction of College Park Drive Sidewalk Project was complete on 12/15/17 with work performed by Advanced 
Excavating and Paving, LLC.  The construction contract amount was $396,642.00.  This project is funded  80% by NHDOT as 
part of the US Federal Highway Administration “Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program” (CMAQ) and 
20% by the Town.

The College Park Drive Sidewalk project is waiting final approval from NHDOT upon receipt of the Town’s acceptance of the 
project.

See attached detailed breakdown.

Recommendation (Including Suggested motion, if appropriate)
Recommend to accept the College Park Sidewalk Drive sidewalk as complete

Fiscal Impact
No Fiscal Impact

Prepared By: James Donison
Town Administrator’s Recommendation
Concur

30



Staff Report
Title: Hooksett Village Water Precinct easement across Town of Hooksett land - Tax Map 7 Lot 18

Date: 2/28/2018
Background Discussion of Issues
The Hooksett Village Water Precinct would like to discuss an agreement with the Town to 
acquire an easement across the Town of Hooksett land designated as Tax Map 7 Lot 18. The 
easement will provide for the construction of a proposed water main extension from a new 
tank on the west side of Route 93 to Route 3A.

Attached are the plans of the proposed water storage tank and watermain which extends under I-
93 to Pinnacle Street to Vista Drive, across Town lot 18 and connects to the existing watermain 
on Rte. 3A near Hackett Hill Road.  Also attached is the letter request from HVWP and a draft 
easement which will be reviewed by the Town attorney.

Recommendation (Including Suggested motion, if appropriate)
Recommend to approve a 30 ft. wide watermain easement with HVWP across Town land, Map 
7-Lot 18 upon review and approval by the Town attorney.

Fiscal Impact
No Fiscal Impact

Prepared By: James Donison
Town Administrator’s Recommendation
Concur

31



32



33



34



35



36



 
345 NH Route 104, Suite 7 New Hampton, NH 03256 

Phone (603) 744-1044 
www.brownengineeringllc.com 

 

 

James Donison, P.E. 

Town of Hooksett 

35 Main Street 

Hooksett, NH. 03106 

 

Date: February 15, 2018 

 

Re: Hooksett Village Water Precinct 

  

Dear Mr. Donison, 

 

On behalf of my client I request that you put the Hooksett Village Water Precinct on the 

February 28, 2018 agenda for the Town Council meeting. The Hooksett Village Water 

Precinct would like to discuss an agreement with the Town to acquire an easement across 

the Town of Hooksett land designated as Tax Map 7 Lot 18. The easement will provide 

for the construction of a proposed water main extension from a new tank on the west side 

of Route 93 to Route 3A. 

 

Enclosed you will find: 

 

1  Set of plans for the water line extension 

1  Overview Plan  

1 Draft Easement 

1  CD with a pdf version of the submittal 

 

 

Please let me know if you need any additional information. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 

Kent Brown, P.E. 

 

37



 

 

EASEMENT DEED 
Water Utility Easement 

 

The Town of Hooksett, Map 7 Lot 18, in the county of Merrimack and state of New Hampshire, 

for consideration paid, grant to the Hooksett Village Water Precinct, a municipal corporation 

with its principal place of business at 7 Riverside Street, Hooksett, NH 03106, a perpetual Water 

Utility Easement described as follows: 

  

A 30 foot‐wide Right and Easement to lay, construct, operate, renew, change the size of, and 

remove a pipe line for transmission of water, together with necessary fittings, valves and other 

appurtenances under, along and across said land of the Town of Hooksett.  Said pipeline is to be 

located as now laid out by Brown Engineering and Surveying LLC., extending from the fifty‐foot‐

wide, public right of way known as Vista drive to the North to land now or formally of 

Chandonenet Family Rev. Trust to the South. 

 

The Grantors and their successors, heirs and assigns shall not erect or construct any building or 

other structure, or drill or construct or operate any well, or construct any reservoir or other 

obstruction in the easement area, or diminish or substantially add to the ground over the said 

easement area. 

 

The Grantor shall not make any improvements within or abutting this easement which interfere 

with or will interfere with the Grantee’s exercise of its rights under this easement. 

 

The Grantee, its employees and its agents shall have the right to enter and leave the easement 

area with workers, equipment and material in order to inspect, survey and clear the easement 

and to carry out the purposes of the easement. 

 

The rights, restrictions, conditions and duties of this Water Utility Easement shall run with the 

land and shall accrue to and be binding upon the Grantor, tenants and any subsequent owners 

and tenants, their successors, heirs or assigns.  Any lease of the parcel containing the easement 

shall be subject to the terms of this Water Utility Easement. 

 

Said land of Hooksett is also subject to another waterline easement recorded at the Merrimack 

Country Registry of Deeds as Book 868 Page 203. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
38



 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereby set my hand this _____ day of _____________. ______. 
           (date)          (month)        (year) 
 

GRANTOR:     
  

____________________________________ 
(signature) 

       
       By:       
       (printed) 
      
_______________________________________ 
Witness to Grantor 
 
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 
COUNTY OF MERRIMACK 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ________ day of  
 
_______________ 201__ by ________________________________ . 

 
 
       
Notary Public/Justice of the Peace 

 
     

My Commission Expires: _______________ 
 

�

39



40


	Town Council Agenda
	2016-867 - TC Minutes 021418-U.docx
	2016-855 - 022818 KENO Public Hearing.doc
	2016-855 - KENO 2018.pdf
	2016-831 - Staff Report - VVA_donation.docx
	2016-863 - Staff Report - Reimbursement.docx
	2016-863 - 20180215134656402.pdf
	2016-866 - Abatements 02282018.docx
	2016-862 - SR Telephone Services 2018.docx
	2016-862 - OTT Communications.pdf
	2016-857 - staff report - 2-28-18 Well Radius Encroachment easement on Town right-of-way Pine Street - for lot 48 Pine Street.docx
	2016-857 - 48PineStreet.Well.020218.pdf
	2016-857 - ISDS_eCA2017060501_Approved_Plan.pdf
	2016-864 - staff report - feb 28 2018 Accept College Park Drive Sidewalk project as Complete.docx
	2016-865 - staff report - feb 28 2018 HVWP easement across town land.docx
	2016-865 - 4100-02 Overall Proposed Pipeline 50-scale.pdf
	2016-865 - 4100-02 Overall Proposed Pipeline 100-scale.pdf
	2016-865 - Letter to JDonison.pdf
	2016-865 - Town of Hooksett Easement .pdf
	2016-841 - Community Profile.pdf

